# **COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT**

# between



# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 5040

and



# FOOTHILLS SCHOOL DIVISION

September 1, 2020 to August 31, 2024



# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

PREAMBLE	1
ARTICLE 1 – INTERPRETATION AND DEFINITIONS	1
ARTICLE 2 – UNION RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE 3 – DURATION AND TERM OF AGREEMENT	3
ARTICLE 4 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	3
ARTICLE 5 – DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT	4
ARTICLE 6 – UNION DUES	
ARTICLE 7 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	
ARTICLE 8 – DISCIPLINE, DISCHARGE AND TERMINATION	7
ARTICLE 9 – SENIORITY	8
ARTICLE 10 – PROMOTIONS AND STAFF CHANGES	
ARTICLE 11 – PROBATIONARY PERIOD	. 10
ARTICLE 12 – TRIAL PERIOD	
ARTICLE 13 – LAY-OFF AND RECALL	
ARTICLE 14 – HOURS OF WORK	
ARTICLE 15 – OVERTIME	
ARTICLE 16 – GENERAL HOLIDAYS	
ARTICLE 17 – VACATION ENTITLEMENT	
ARTICLE 18 – SICK LEAVE	
ARTICLE 19 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE	. 15
ARTICLE 20 – UNION LEAVE	
ARTICLE 21 – COMPASSIONATE LEAVE	
ARTICLE 22 – MATERNITY, PARENTAL OR ADOPTION LEAVE	
ARTICLE 23 – PAYMENT OF WAGES	. 18
ARTICLE 24 – GRID PLACEMENTS	
ARTICLE 25 – INCREMENTS	
ARTICLE 26 – JOB CLASSIFICATION AND RE-CLASSIFICATION	_
ARTICLE 27 – EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS AND PENSION	
ARTICLE 28 – EMPLOYEE CELL PHONES	
ARTICLE 29 – PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	
ARTICLE 30 – OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY	
APPENDIX A – SALARY APPENDIX	
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING	_
RE: PAYMENT OF WAGES SUMMER RECESS	
RE: EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANT (CERTIFIED)	
RE: LEARNING COMMONS FACILITATOR	
RE: RETROACTIVITY	
RE: VIOLENCE IN THE WORKPLACE	. 32

#### **PREAMBLE**

WHEREAS the parties desire to maintain the existing harmonious relations of employment between the Employer, Employees, and the Union, and enhance understanding and cooperation between the parties;

WHEREAS the parties mutually value joint discussions and negotiations;

WHEREAS the parties agree to encourage efficiency in operation; and

WHEREAS the parties wish to support and promote a positive morale, well-being and security for all Employees in the bargaining unit,

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH:

#### ARTICLE 1 – INTERPRETATION AND DEFINITIONS

- 1.1 The Union means the Canadian Union of Public Employees, Local 5040.
- 1.2 The Employer or the Division means the Foothills School Division.
- 1.3 The Board means the Board of Trustees of the Foothills School Division.
- 1.4 Principal means the designated school principal where the Employee is assigned to work.
- 1.5 Immediate Supervisor means the designated person to whom an Employee reports.
- 1.6 Employee means any person employed by Foothills School Division who is covered by the terms and conditions of this Collective Agreement.
- 1.7 Permanent Employee is a full-time or part-time Employee who occupies a permanent position and who has successfully completed a probationary period in accordance with Article 11. A permanent Employee can occupy either a ten (10) month or twelve (12) month permanent position.
- 1.8 Probationary Employee is a newly hired full-time or part-time Employee who is serving their probationary period in accordance with Article 11.
- 1.9 a) Temporary Employee shall be either:
  - i) a person who is hired for a period of more than three (3) months and less than twelve (12) months for a new position not of a permanent nature; or
  - ii) a person who is hired as sick relief or to replace an Employee who is on a leave of absence for a period of more than three (3) months and less than twenty-four (24) months.

- b) Clause 1.9 a) shall not apply to persons employed for bus and/or lunch supervision and to persons employed in a non-permanent position funded specifically by a government grant (e.g. Program Unit Funding PUF).
- c) A temporary Employee shall only be covered by those provisions of the Agreement which reference temporary Employees or all Employees. A temporary Employee may be terminated at the discretion of the Employer, in accordance with Employment Standards, with a minimum two (2) weeks' notice in writing or pay in lieu of notice if the termination is not for cause.
- 1.10 Casual Employee is an Employee who works on an intermittent basis for a period of less than ninety (90) calendar days. A casual Employee shall only be covered by those provisions of the Agreement which reference casual Employees or all Employees.
- 1.11 Permanent position means a position established by the Employer which is continuous in nature.
- 1.12 Temporary position is a position which is not continuous in nature, in accordance with Article 1.9.
- 1.13 Anniversary date is the Employee's most recent date of hire with the Employer. A break in service of not more than ninety (90) calendar days shall not constitute a break in service for the purposes of establishing the Employee's anniversary date.

#### **ARTICLE 2 – UNION RECOGNITION**

- 2.1 The Employer recognizes the Canadian Union of Public Employees, Local 5040 as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining agent for all Employees of the Employer according to Certificate 27-2011 or amendments thereto issued by the Labour Relations Board of Alberta.
- 2.2 Persons whose jobs are not in the bargaining unit shall not work on a job which is included in the bargaining unit, except for purposes of instruction, in an emergency, or when a permanent Employee is not available, and provided that the act of performing the work does not reduce the regular hours of work or basic rates of pay of any permanent Employee. For purposes of this clause, "persons" shall mean all other Employees of the Employer who are not included in the bargaining unit.
- 2.3 Volunteers will not be used to replace or reduce the hours of a permanent Employee.
- 2.4 No Employee shall be required or permitted to make any written or verbal agreement which may be in conflict with the terms of this Collective Agreement.
- 2.5 On a yearly basis the Union shall provide the Employer with a written list of Union Officers and Representatives elected or appointed to represent the Union.

  No individual Employee or group of Employees shall undertake to represent the Union at meetings with the Employer without proper authorization of the Union.

- 2.6 The Union may have the assistance of a CUPE National Representative at meetings held with the Employer.
- 2.7 The Union shall be provided space in each facility for posting notices and information pertaining to the Union. A copy of information which is to be posted will be provided to Assistant Superintendent of Corporate Services at the time of posting.
- 2.8 The Employer agrees to acquaint new Employees with the fact that a Union Agreement is in effect and to provide them with access to the current Agreement.

# **ARTICLE 3 – DURATION AND TERM OF AGREEMENT**

- 3.1 This Agreement shall be in force and effect as of September 1, 2020, and shall continue in full force and effect through August 31, 2024, and from year to year thereafter unless amended or terminated.
- 3.2 Either party desiring to amend or terminate this Agreement shall give notice in writing to the other party not less than sixty (60) days and not more than one hundred twenty (120) days immediately preceding the expiry date of the Agreement.
- 3.3 When notice to amend the Collective Agreement has been served, the parties shall commence negotiations within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice. Where the parties mutually agree, they may exchange any proposed amendments at the first meeting of the Bargaining Committees.
- 3.4 This Collective Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until a replacement agreement is concluded or until a legal strike or lockout commences in accordance with the *Alberta Labour Relations Code*.
- 3.5 The parties may, at any time by mutual agreement, negotiate revisions to this Agreement. Such revisions, subject to ratification, shall be reflected in writing in a Letter of Understanding and signed by both parties.
- 3.6 The Union Bargaining Committee may consist of up to three (3) Employees from the Local. The Union will advise the Superintendent, or designate, in writing of members of the Union Bargaining Committee.

#### **ARTICLE 4 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS**

- 4.1 The Employer reserves all rights not specifically restricted or limited by the provisions of this Collective Agreement, including the Employer's right, at its sole discretion, to provide for the payment of any additional amount to any new Employee upon initial hiring where such payments may be necessary to attract qualified candidates to meet the needs of the Employer and furthermore includes the right to:
  - a) Maintain order and efficiency;

- b) make or alter, from time to time, rules, regulations, and work schedules, to be observed by Employees;
- c) direct the staff and to create new classifications and work units from time to time, hire, promote, transfer, discipline or discharge.

#### ARTICLE 5 - DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT

- 5.1 The Employer and the Union are committed to creating and maintaining a work environment in which all individuals are treated with dignity and respect. The Employer and the Union agree:
  - a) that there shall be no discrimination exercised or practiced with respect to any Employee covered by this Agreement by reason of any prohibited grounds of discrimination identified in the Alberta Human Rights Act or the Alberta Labour Relations Code. This shall include by reason of their membership or nonmembership in a trade Union or for exercising any rights under this Agreement.
  - b) to work together to address unacceptable behaviour such as discrimination and harassment. The Employer's "Harassment in the Workplace Policy (AP 403)" will be made available to all Employees.

#### **ARTICLE 6 – UNION DUES**

- 6.1 The Employer shall deduct from the monthly regular wages of Employees covered by this Collective Agreement an amount equal to the Union dues, as established by the Union. Union dues shall be forwarded by direct deposit to the Union's financial institution upon release of the Employee's cheque on which the dues were deducted.
- 6.2 The following information shall be provided to the President and Treasurer of the Union as indicated below:

# a) Employee Contact Report

- i) The report will provide the Employee's name, address, phone number, position, work location, full-time equivalency (FTE), anniversary date, seniority (for permanent Employees) and the Employee's status as either full-time, part-time, temporary, or casual.
- ii) The report will be provided monthly, electronically and in Microsoft Excel format.

# b) Dues Deduction Report

i) The report will provide the Employee's name, regular wages for the month and the amount of Union dues deducted.

- ii) This report will be provided monthly in accordance with Article 6.1, electronically and in Microsoft Excel format.
- 6.3 Any change in the monthly Union dues will be communicated to the Employer in writing and take effect the month following the notification.
- 6.4 The Employer shall record the yearly amount of Union dues paid by each Employee on the Employee's T-4 slip.

#### ARTICLE 7 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- 7.1 A grievance is defined as any difference arising out of the interpretation, application, administration or alleged violation of this Agreement, or the imposition of disciplinary action.
- 7.2 An Employee is entitled to Union representation at any Step of the grievance procedure, and the Union has carriage of all grievances.
- 7.3 The time limits specified in this Article shall not include Saturdays, Sundays and Named Holidays. Time limits will be waived for school closures and shall recommence the first day that school recommences.
  - a) Time limits and the requirements of the grievance procedure are mandatory; however, the time limits may be extended by mutual agreement of both parties in writing.
  - b) Where the Employee or the Union fails to meet timelines in the grievance procedure, the grievance shall be considered abandoned. Where the respondent fails to meet a timeline in the grievance procedure, the Union may advance the grievance to the next Step in the grievance procedure.
- 7.4 An earnest effort shall be made to settle a grievance as follows:

# Step 1 – Informal

Prior to filing a written grievance, the Employee or Employees concerned, with or without a Union representative, shall first seek to settle the dispute in discussion with their Immediate Supervisor, or designate, within ten (10) working days of the incident giving rise to the dispute. The decision of the Immediate Supervisor, or designate, will be communicated verbally to the Employee or Employees concerned within ten (10) working days of the discussion with the Employee or Employees.

#### Step 2

If the dispute is not resolved satisfactorily in Step 1, the Union may file a written grievance on behalf of the Employee or Employees concerned.

The written grievance will include the name(s) of the grievor(s), the nature of the grievance and the circumstances related to it, the remedy sought, and the section(s) of the Agreement alleged to have been violated.

The Step 2 grievance will be submitted to the Assistant Superintendent in charge of Human Resources, or designate, within ten (10) working days of the response in Step 1.

The Assistant Superintendent in charge of Human Resources, or designate, meet with the Union and the Employee(s) within ten (10) working days to discuss the grievance.

The decision of the Assistant Superintendent in charge of Human Resources, or designate, will be communicated to the Union in writing within ten (10) working days of the Step 2 meeting.

# Step 3

If the grievance is not resolved satisfactorily at Step 2, the Union may forward the grievance to the Superintendent, or designate, within ten (10) working days.

The Superintendent, or designate, will meet with the Union and the Employee(s) within ten (10) working days to discuss the grievance.

The decision of the Superintendent, or designate, will be communicated to the Union in writing within ten (10) working days of the meeting.

The Employer may, within five (5) working days of receiving a grievance at Step 3 of the grievance procedure, notify the Union of their intention to bypass Step 3. In such circumstances, the Union may advance the matter to mediation or arbitration, within ten (10) working days of the Employer's notice, and in accordance with Articles 7.5 or 7.6.

# 7.5 Mediation

If mutually agreed by the parties, either party may apply within ten (10) working days of the Step 3 decision, for a third-party grievance mediator to assist to resolve the grievance prior to referring the grievance to arbitration.

The cost of the Mediator shall be shared equally between the Employer and the Union.

Unless mutually agreed to by the parties, any recommendations of the Mediator shall not be binding upon the parties or upon any Employee affected by it.

If mediation fails, the Union may refer the grievance to arbitration within the time limits specified below.

# 7.6 Arbitration

If the dispute is not resolved satisfactorily in Step 3 or mediation, the Union may notify the Employer in writing within twenty (20) working days of its' desire to refer the grievance to arbitration.

Both parties shall endeavour to reach agreement on the appointment of the Arbitrator to hear the dispute. In the event the parties fail to appoint a Chairperson, either party may request the Director of Mediation Services to make the necessary appointment.

The Arbitrator shall determine their own procedure but shall give full opportunities to all parties to present evidence and to be heard.

The Arbitrator shall not change, amend or alter any of the terms of this Agreement.

The findings and decision of the Arbitrator is final and binding upon the parties and upon any Employee affected by it.

Each party to the grievance shall bear equally the expenses of the Arbitrator.

- 7.7 Union Policy grievances shall commence at Step 2 of the grievance procedure.
- 7.8 Suspension or termination grievances shall commence at Step 2 of the grievance procedure.
- 7.9 The parties may mutually agree to the establishment of a three (3) person arbitration panel as an alternative to a single Arbitrator. Where a three (3) person arbitration panel is established, each party will bear the expenses of their nominee to the panel.

# ARTICLE 8 – DISCIPLINE, DISCHARGE AND TERMINATION

- 8.1 No Employee will be disciplined, suspended or discharged without just cause.
- 8.2 An Employee who considers they have been wrongfully or unjustly disciplined, suspended or discharged shall be entitled to grieve in accordance with Article 7. An Employee who considers they have been wrongfully or unjustly suspended or discharged shall be entitled to grieve in accordance with Article 7 beginning at Step 2.
- 8.3 When the Employer requires an Employee to attend a meeting where they are the subject of an investigation or potential discipline, the Employee will be advised in advance of the meeting of their right to have a Union Representative present at such meeting. Where the Employer determines discipline is warranted, the Employee shall receive a written record of the discipline at the disciplinary meeting.
- 8.4 All letters of discipline will be removed from an Employee's personnel file after eighteen (18) months.

- 8.5 An Employee shall have the right to view their personnel file with two (2) days notice to the Employer.
- 8.6 An Employee who is absent from work without an authorized leave of absence may be subject to discipline up to termination, unless the Employee can demonstrate that emergency or special circumstances prevented the Employee from reporting to work. Their employment may be terminated by registered letter or courier to the Employee's last known address.
- 8.7 Two (2) weeks notice in writing shall be provided to the Employer when an Employee resigns from their employment.

#### **ARTICLE 9 – SENIORITY**

- 9.1 Seniority shall be defined as the length of continuous employment with the Employer and shall be accrued from the first day of employment in a permanent position within the bargaining unit and shall include service with the Employer prior to the certification of the Union. The Christmas, Spring and Summer breaks will not affect the seniority or continuity of an Employee's employment.
- 9.2 a) A temporary Employee will accumulate service from the first date of employment calculated based on days worked within the bargaining unit in a temporary position. Accumulated temporary service will be credited to an Employee as seniority once they attain status as a permanent Employee.
  - b) A temporary Employee who has a break in service of six (6) months will lose all accumulated temporary service.
  - c) Accumulated temporary service will not be considered for transfers and the filling of vacant or newly created positions, lay-off, reduction in hours and recall.
- 9.3 Seniority shall continue to accrue for a period of twelve (12) months when a permanent Employee is absent from work due to sickness, accident, lay-off or leave of absence approved by the Employer. Notwithstanding, seniority shall continue to accrue for a period of up to twenty-four (24) months while a permanent Employee is absent from work while on extended disability leave.
- 9.4 Seniority shall operate on a bargaining unit wide basis and shall be a consideration for transfers and the filling of vacant or newly created positions, lay-off, reduction in hours and recall where Employees are considered by the Employer to be relatively equal.
- 9.5 In the event that seniority is a determining factor and two (2) or more Employees have the same seniority date, the issue shall be resolved by deeming the Employee who is, at the time, working the most hours with the Employer, as the senior Employee.
- 9.6 An Employee shall only lose seniority in the event of:
  - a) Discharge for just cause and the Employee is not reinstated;

- b) resignation in writing and not withdrawn within one (1) working day;
- c) retirement;
- d) failure to return to work from a layoff within seven (7) calendar days, and after being notified by registered mail or by letter delivered by courier, unless through sickness or other just cause. It shall be the responsibility of the Employee to keep the Employer informed of their current address and telephone number. An Employee recalled for Temporary work to employment of short duration at a time when they are employed elsewhere shall not lose their recall rights for refusal to return to work; or
- e) lay-off, without recall, for a period of one (1) year.
- 9.7 The Employer shall maintain an up-to-date Seniority List reflecting the Employee's name, classification and seniority date. A copy of the Seniority List shall be provided electronically to all bargaining unit Employees and to the Secretary of the Union in April and October of each year.

#### **ARTICLE 10 – PROMOTIONS AND STAFF CHANGES**

- 10.1 Employees may indicate their desire to transfer to the same classification at another location within the Division. Transfers shall be made in accordance with Article 10.4.
- 10.2 When a vacancy occurs, and where the Employer chooses to fill the vacancy, it will be posted on the Employer's website for a minimum of five (5) business days except where the Employer and the Union agree to a shorter posting period for operational purposes no fewer than three (3) business days. Approval for agreeing to a shorter posting period shall not be unreasonably denied by the Union. Notification of postings will be made available via the recruitment management system accessed through the Employer's website.
- 10.3 Posting of the vacancy shall include the following information:
  - a) Position Description
  - b) Job Requirements
  - c) Position Location
  - d) Pay Group
  - e) Position Designation: permanent or temporary
  - f) Date of posting
- 10.4 Appointments and transfers shall be made based on consideration of all qualifications for the position including skills, training, knowledge and experience.

- Where two (2) or more applicants are relatively equal, seniority with the Employer shall be the determining factor in the selection process.
- 10.5 When the Employer has a short-term temporary vacancy during the school year, the Employer at their discretion may assign the position to a casual or part-time Employee to meet operational and learning needs. Temporary Appointments referred to in this clause will be in accordance with Article 10.4. This Temporary Appointment shall not exceed twenty (20) consecutive working days.

#### **ARTICLE 11 – PROBATIONARY PERIOD**

- 11.1 An Employee shall serve only one (1) probationary period. Each new Employee will be required to serve a three (3) month probationary period from date of appointment into a permanent position.
- 11.2 At least once during the probationary period, the Employer shall provide a written performance evaluation to the Employee.
- 11.3 The probationary period may be extended up to a maximum of three (3) additional months, provided written notice of the extension with reason(s) is given to the Employee before the expiry of the initial probationary period. The Union shall be copied on the notice of extension.
- 11.4 If an Employee's probationary period is not completed within a school year, it will continue into the next school year as if there was no break in service.
- 11.5 The Employer may terminate the employment of a probationary Employee at any time for any reason during the probationary period without notice or payment in lieu of notice.

#### **ARTICLE 12 – TRIAL PERIOD**

12.1 Any Employee in the bargaining unit awarded a posted position in a different classification shall be on a trial period for three (3) months. If the Employer deems the Employee unsatisfactory during the trial period, or the Employee does not wish to remain in the position, the Employee will revert to their former position and wage rate. Any other Employees affected by this reversion shall also revert to their former position and wage rate.

#### **ARTICLE 13 – LAY-OFF AND RECALL**

13.1 A lay-off shall be defined as a reduction of a position occupied by a permanent Employee or a reduction in a permanent Employee's regular hours of work.

Where an Employee mutually agrees to reduce their regular hours of work, the Union shall be notified in writing of the agreement and the provisions of this Article shall be waived.

- 13.2 For other than the summer prescheduled school closures, the Employer shall provide as much notice as possible to the Union. Employees who are to be laid-off shall receive in writing, no less than fourteen (14) calendar days notice of lay-off or notice in accordance with *Alberta Employment Standards*, whichever is greater.
- 13.3 In the event of a reduction of position(s) or regular hours, Employees shall be laid-off in reverse order of seniority within the same classification.

The order of lay-off shall be:

- a) Temporary Employees
- b) Permanent Employees
- 13.4 An Employee with seniority in the bargaining unit whose job is permanently affected by way of being discontinued or changed in a manner that will reduce the Employee's regular hours of work may, if the Employee chooses, displace the Employee with the least seniority in the same classification and same regular hours of work provided they have all of the qualifications for the position including skills, training, knowledge and experience for the position they would assume. Other Employees who are affected by such a move shall be allowed to exercise their seniority rights in the same manner.
- 13.5 Employees shall be recalled by classification in order of their seniority provided they have all of the qualifications for the position including skills, training, knowledge and experience for the position they would assume. The Employer shall send the recall notice both via mail and by email to the Employee's last known address.
- 13.6 Employees shall remain on the recall list until they are recalled into a position or combination of positions with the same number of hours they worked at the time of layoff, or for one (1) year, whichever comes first.
- 13.7 An Employee who refuses recall into a position or combination of positions with the same number of hours they worked at the time of lay-off or an Employee who fails to return to work within seven (7) calendar days after being notified to do so, unless through sickness, resignation, will be removed from the recall list.
- 13.8 No new Employees shall be hired for a period of one (1) year until those laid-off have been given an opportunity of recall in accordance with Article 13.5.

#### ARTICLE 14 – HOURS OF WORK

14.1 At the beginning of the school year or the commencement of employment, the Employee will be provided with a schedule of normal hours of work.

For purposes other than changes in FTE, this schedule may be changed on two (2) weeks written notice to the Employee or at any time with the consent of the Employee. Where an Employee mutually agrees to amend their schedule, the Union shall be notified in writing of the agreement.

- 14.2 Instructional Support Staff allocations for each Employee shall be as outlined in the Employer's Administrative Procedure 505 Appendix B.
- 14.3 For information purposes only, the normal full-time hours of work are as follows:

For Educational Assistants, six and one-half (6  $\frac{1}{2}$ ) hours per day, Monday through Friday.

For CTS Instructors, Library Staff, School Secretaries, Youth Development Coaches and Data Facilitators, seven (7) hours per day Monday through Friday.

For Account Administrators, Office Administrators and Technology Facilitators, seven and one-half (7  $\frac{1}{2}$ ) hours per day Monday through Friday.

- 14.4 All General Holidays are included in the annual hours of work as applicable.
- 14.5 Any additional days, excluding overtime, worked by an Employee covered by the bargaining unit and authorized by the Employer will be paid at the Employee's basic rate of pay. An Employee may take time off in lieu at their basic rate of pay for additional days worked. Time off in lieu shall be taken at a time mutually agreed between the Employee and Employer. Any Employee who has time off in lieu remaining at the end of the school year shall be paid out at the basic rate of pay.
- 14.6 The provisions of this Article may be amended to make possible alternative work patterns (for example, flextime, four (4) day work weeks, etc.) only by mutual agreement between the Employer, the Union and the Employee.
- 14.7 Employees will receive one (1) fifteen (15) minute work break for each shift of three (3) to five (5) consecutive hours and will receive two (2) fifteen (15) minute work breaks for each shift of more than five (5) hours.
- 14.8 An unpaid rest break of thirty (30) minutes will be provided to Employees, within one and a half (1 ½) hours of the noon hour. During the thirty (30) minute rest break the Employee will not be required to provide service to staff or supervision of students.
- 14.9 If the Employer determines that summer work or extra work during the school year is available, currently employed members of the bargaining unit who the Employer decides has the necessary skills and qualifications will be asked if they wish to fill the hours, in order of seniority, prior to non-bargaining unit personnel being utilized.

#### **ARTICLE 15 – OVERTIME**

- 15.1 Any Employee who works more than seven and one-half (7  $\frac{1}{2}$ ) hours in a day or more than thirty-seven and one-half (37  $\frac{1}{2}$ ) hours in a week shall be entitled to overtime at the rate of time and one-half (1  $\frac{1}{2}$  x) of regular pay.
- 15.2 All overtime requires prior approval by the Principal or Immediate Supervisor.
- 15.3 Approval by the Employer for overtime after the fact shall not be unreasonably denied where overtime arises as a result of unforeseen circumstances under which prior approval could not be obtained. Overtime worked in such circumstances must be approved after the fact, but within two (2) operational days of the time worked.
- 15.4 The Employee may request to be paid overtime or by mutual agreement between the Principal or Immediate Supervisor receive time off in lieu at time and one-half  $(1\frac{1}{2}x)$ .
- 15.5 Any Employee who has time off in lieu at the end of the school year shall be paid out for such overtime at time and one-half  $(1\frac{1}{2}x)$ .
- 15.6 All overtime worked and time in lieu banked or utilized, will be recorded and signed by the Principal or Immediate Supervisor and Employee.

# **ARTICLE 16 – GENERAL HOLIDAYS**

16.1 Full-time Employees shall be entitled to pay for the following general holidays. Part-time Employees shall be entitled to pay for the following general holidays based on a pro-rata basis as it relates to the Employee's FTE:

New Year's Day Family Day
Good Friday Easter Monday
Victoria Day Canada Day
Labour Day Thanksgiving Day

Remembrance Day Boxing Day

Christmas Day National Day of Truth and Reconciliation

And any other general public holidays as proclaimed by the Foothills School Division, the Government of Alberta or the Government of Canada which fall during the ten (10) month period of employment.

16.2 Payment for the above general holidays will be added to the regular hours and divided by the months paid.

#### **ARTICLE 17 – VACATION ENTITLEMENT**

17.1 All Employees shall receive the following vacation entitlements:

2 years or less	4% of regular wages
3 to 6 years	6% of regular wages
7 to 15 years	8% of regular wages
16 to 24 years	10% of regular wages
25 years or more	12% of regular wages

- 17.2 Vacation pay earned will be added to the regular hours and divided by the months paid.
- 17.3 Employees who are laid-off by the Employer and who are recalled within two (2) years of lay-off shall have their vacation entitlement re-instated in full in relation to the total years of previous service with the Employer.

#### **ARTICLE 18 – SICK LEAVE**

- 18.1 New Employees, including temporary Employees, will begin to earn sick leave with pay after one (1) month of service and they will be entitled to use sick leave with pay after three (3) months of service.
- 18.2 Sick leave with pay shall be earned at the rate of two (2) days per month to a maximum of seventy-five (75) working days.
- 18.3 During periods of illness the Employee will earn sick leave with pay as follows:
  - a) two (2) days if the Employee has been ill for up to five (5) days in that one month;
  - b) one (1) day if the Employee has been ill for six (6) to fifteen (15) days in one month;
  - c) no days if an illness exceeds fifteen (15) days in one month.
- 18.4 Part-time Employees earn sick leave with pay based on pro-rated hours.
- 18.5 In the event an illness exceeds five (5) consecutive working days, the Employee shall submit an Employer approved medical certificate signed by a qualified medical or dental practitioner to the Employer indicating the date first seen for illness, general prognosis for recovery and date of return to work.
- 18.6 For absences in excess of ten (10) consecutive workdays, the Employee shall provide an Employer provided medical certificate attesting to their readiness to return to work or requested modification. This certificate shall be provided to the Employer a minimum of five (5) consecutive days prior to the expected date of return.

- 18.7 Sick leave days unused at the conclusion of the school year will be carried forward into the following school year and will not be reimbursed to the Employee. Upon termination of employment an Employee shall not be reimbursed sick leave days.
- 18.8 Additional medical certificates may be requested by the Employer during an Employee's medical leave.
- 18.9 Permanent Employees who are laid off by the Division and return to work within a one (1) year period to a permanent position shall have the unused portion of their accumulated sick leave days reinstated in full.

#### ARTICLE 19 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE

- 19.1 A Principal may approve up to three (3) days, based on yearly FTE, of temporary leave of absence with pay provided the Employer is reimbursed by deducting from the Employee's wages fifty percent (50%) of the rate on the first step on the grid for the Employee's individual classification.
- 19.2 An Employee requesting a personal leave of absence without pay in excess of three (3) working days shall make the request in writing to the Superintendent, or designate, stating the reason for the leave, the date of departure and the date of return. If a leave of absence is refused, the reason for such refusal shall be given to the Employee in writing.
- 19.3 In the case of a leave of absence without pay of more than thirty (30) working days in duration the Employee will be required to reimburse the Alberta School Employee Benefit Plan for one hundred percent (100%) of the Employee's benefit costs in order to retain coverage under the plan. Retaining coverage under the plan is subject to the approval of the carrier.
- 19.4 Upon request, an Employee shall be given a "discretionary day", at full pay providing the Principal approves and the request has been made with at least one (1) day's notice, and subject to the operational needs of the Employer. Unused days referred to in this clause may be accumulated to a maximum of two (2) days. No more than two (2) days of such leave may be used in the same school year.
- 19.5 An Employee, who despite reasonable effort, is unable to travel to their school from their usual place of residence because of inclement weather or impassable road conditions, is entitled to leave with pay for the periods of absence so occasioned, provided the absence has been approved by the principal.
- 19.6 One (1) day paid leave annually will be granted to an Employee to attend their own or their spouse/partner's, or child's post-secondary convocation (of a program at least two (2) years duration), where the ceremony takes place during the Employee's regular scheduled workday.

# 19.7 Sabbatical Leave

An Employee who has worked at least (90) days for the Employer, may request in writing to their school principal for a sabbatical leave of up to one (1) school year. Sabbatical leave requests will be approved by the Assistant Superintendent of Employee Services. The Employee must apply, in writing, by May 31<sup>st</sup> in advance of the school year in which the sabbatical would take place. The Employee must include reasons and details on why the leave is requested.

- a) If the leave is approved the Employee will not suffer loss of seniority.
- b) The length of the leave will not be counted towards the Employees next step increment.
- c) The Employee will be able to extend the leave up to one (1) extra year. The Employee must request an extension, in writing, by May 31<sup>st</sup> in advance of the school year in which the sabbatical would take place.
- d) When the Employee returns to the division they will return to the same or similar position within the school division as they held before they took the sabbatical leave.

# 19.8 Jury and Witness Duty

An Employee who is subpoenaed by the Crown for jury duty or as a witness for the Crown, shall not lose any pay because of such service, provided the amount paid for such service is repaid by the Employee to the Employer. The Employee must present proof of service, and the full amount of compensation received, to be eligible. The Employees shall notify the Employer immediately upon receipt of notification that the Employee has been subpoenaed by the Crown.

#### ARTICLE 20 – UNION LEAVE

- 20.1 Representatives of the Union shall not suffer any loss of pay or discrimination when required to leave their employment temporarily in order to attend a meeting mutually established by the Union and the Employer, negotiations or grievances.
- 20.2 Subject to operational requirements, and upon written request to the Employer by the Union, leave of absence with pay, benefits and pension shall be granted to allow Employees to perform the duties of any office in their Union or the parent Union, or attend meetings of the Canadian Union of Public Employees, its affiliated or chartered bodies.
- 20.3 An Employee granted union leave shall accrue their seniority rights in the bargaining unit with no decrease in status.

20.4 The Union will reimburse the Employer within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of an invoice for the wages, benefits and pension of an Employee granted union leave of absence.

#### **ARTICLE 21 – COMPASSIONATE LEAVE**

- 21.1 A permanent Employee shall be granted leave of absence with pay as follows:
  - a) Up to three (3) working days in the case of critical illness of a partner (including same-gendered partner), parent, child, grandchild, brother, sister, parent of spouse, ward, grandparent, grandparent of spouse, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, uncle, aunt, cousin, nephew, niece, or any other relative residing in the Employee's house.
    - i) Critical illness shall be defined as a medical condition with a significant risk of death within twenty-six (26) weeks and shall be determined by a certificate from a medical doctor if required and paid for by the School Jurisdiction up to thirty-five dollars (\$35.00).
  - b) Up to three (3) working days in the case of the death of any of the relations listed in Clause 21.1a).
  - c) Additionally, up to two (2) working days with pay may be approved by the Employer where travel is necessary or where the Employee is the Executor of the Estate for the deceased.
  - d) One (1) working day to act as a pallbearer.
- 21.2 Additional days, with or without pay, may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent of Schools, or designate.
- 21 .3 An Employee who is eligible for Employment Insurance (EI) Compassionate Care Benefits, will be entitled to the minimum leave provided by the *Alberta Employment Standards*. The Employee will notify the Employer when they no longer qualify for such benefits to discuss their return to work or other alternatives.

# ARTICLE 22 – MATERNITY, PARENTAL OR ADOPTION LEAVE

- 22.1 An Employee who has completed ninety (90) days of employment shall be entitled to take the minimum leave provided by *Alberta Employment Standards* of unpaid leave.
  - a) Employees wishing to continue any part of their group insurance coverage may do so by assuming the Employer's share of their contributions, thereby continuing their coverage without stoppage during their leave.
- 22.2 Parents are eligible to take parental leave as provided by *Alberta Employment Standards*.

- 22.3 An Employee shall endeavour to give at least sixty (60) days notice in writing of the day upon which the Employee intends to commence maternity leave together with a medical statement certifying that the Employee is pregnant and providing the estimated date of delivery.
- 22.4 Upon request, at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiry of the original leave, an Employee may be granted an extension of maternity leave or adoption leave for the balance of the semester or the school year in which the original leave terminated.
- 22.5 When the Employee returns to duties, they shall be reinstated in the position occupied at the time maternity leave commenced or be provided with alternative work of a comparable nature, at no less salary and benefits than those which were applicable at the time maternity leave commenced.
- 22.6 The sixteen (16) weeks maternity leave will be counted towards the calculation of time for earning an increment.
- 22.7 Parental and adoption leaves do not count towards the calculation of time for earning an increment.
- 22.8 Upon request, an Employee not on maternity leave, shall be granted leave of absence for not more than one (1) day, at full pay, and one (1) day without pay for leave for the birth of the Employee's own child and to bring the child home.

#### **ARTICLE 23 – PAYMENT OF WAGES**

- 23.1 All permanent Employees shall be paid monthly by the last working day of the month. By Employee choice, a mid-month advance on wages will be provided.
- 23.2 Mid-month advance will be paid by the sixteenth (16<sup>th</sup>) of each month.
- 23.3 An Employee who chooses to be paid a mid-month advance must notify the Employer prior to September 1<sup>st</sup> of the school year, or at the initial date of hiring. Once notification is received the choice shall remain in effect for the duration of the year.
- 23.4 All permanent Employees shall have their annual pay distributed in equal payments over the course of the twelve (12) months of each school year, September to August.
- 23.5 If an Employee is overpaid, the Employer will collect the overpayment after a reasonable repayment schedule has been arranged with the Employee. The minimum bi-weekly re-payment will be fifty dollars (\$50.00) per pay period. Employees must repay overpayments within six (6) months except in exceptional circumstances where alternate arrangements can be discussed with the Assistant Superintendent of Employee Services.

#### **ARTICLE 24 – GRID PLACEMENTS**

- 24.1 New Employees with less than two (2) years experience in similar or comparable positions with another Employer will be placed at Step 1 on the applicable classification level.
- 24.2 New Employees with two (2) or more years of experience but less than five (5) years of experience in similar or comparable positions with another Employer may be placed at Step 2 or Step 3 on the applicable classification level as determined by the Employer.
- 24.3 New Employees with more than five (5) years of experience in comparable positions with another Employer may be placed at Step 4 or higher on the applicable classification level as determined by the Employer.
- 24.4 Previous experience in other positions will not be recognized when the new position is significantly different from the prior position.
- 24.5 When an Employee transfers to a new position with the same job classification, there will be no adjustment made to their grid placement.
- 24.6 Casual Employees shall be paid at Step 1 on the applicable classification. A permanent part-time Employee, who works on a casual basis in the same category as their permanent position, shall be paid at the Step in the category of their permanent position. A retired Employee, who returns as a casual Employee, shall be paid based on their Step rate of pay for the category which they retired.

#### **ARTICLE 25 – INCREMENTS**

- 25.1 An Employee will advance to the next Step on the wage grid upon their annual anniversary date of hire, if they have worked eight hundred and fifty (850) hours or more during the year preceding the hire anniversary date. If they have worked less than eight hundred and fifty (850) hours during the past year, they will not advance to the next Step until they have worked eight hundred and fifty (850) hours since their last Step advancement. Eligibility for increments is reviewed on each annual anniversary date of hire.
- 25.2 An Employee may only advance a maximum of one (1) increment per calendar year.

# ARTICLE 26 - JOB CLASSIFICATION AND RE-CLASSIFICATION

- 26.1 The Employer will maintain up-to-date job descriptions for all classifications covered by the Collective Agreement. Any changes or modifications to a classification will be presented to and discussed with the Union prior to implementation.
- 26.2 When a change or modification is made to a job description all Employees in the classification will be provided with a copy of the revised job description.

- 26.3 The Employer will notify the Union in writing of any new classification created during the term of the Collective Agreement, along with a copy of the job description and the proposed rate of pay.
- 26.4 In the event that the proposed rate of pay for the classification cannot be agreed between the Employer and the Union, the matter shall be determined by arbitration in accordance with Article 7.6.
- 26.5 An Employee whose position is re-classified to a lower group classification or who is placed in a position of a lower group classification due to organizational changes will retain the wage they held prior to the date of re-classification and be eligible for transfer by the Employer to positions equivalent in classification to that for which the Employee is being paid.
- 26.6 Employees involved in a job placement which requires a blending of two (2) pay rates shall not suffer a reduction in their rate of pay.

# **ARTICLE 27 – EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS AND PENSION**

- 27.1 To qualify for benefit coverage, an Employee must be employed by the Employer for at least three (3) continuous months of service and be working a minimum of twenty (20) hours per week.
- 27.2 In addition to the requirements set out in this Agreement, Employees must meet the eligibility requirements of both the Alberta School Employee and Benefit Plan (ASEBP) and the Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP).
- 27.3 The Employer will pay one hundred percent (100%) of the premiums for participating Employees for the benefit plans listed below:
  - a) Alberta Health
  - b) ASEBP Life and Accidental Death & Dismemberment Insurance Schedule 2
  - c) ASEBP Extended Disability, Plan D
  - d) ASEBP Extended Health Care, Plan 1
  - e) ASEBP Dental Health, Plan 3
  - f) ASEBP Vision Care, Plan 3
- 27.4 Alberta Health Care, ASEBP Life & Accidental Death & Dismemberment Insurance Schedule 2, and ASEBP Extended Disability, Plan D are compulsory to all Employees who are employed an average of twenty (20) hours or more per week.
- 27.5 Employees who work an average of twenty (20) hours per week are eligible for Voluntary Personal Accident Insurance.

This supplementary plan is voluntary and covers any accidental death or dismemberment anywhere in the world. As the plan is voluntary, the Employer will make a payroll deduction for either the Employee or the Employee and Family Plan. The total premium is the responsibility of the Employee.

- 27.6 All qualifying Employees must participate in the Local Authorities Pension Plan. Terms and particulars are set provincially by the Plan Administrators.
- 27.7 Employees must participate in the pension plan after one (1) year of full-time (thirty (30) hours per week) employment.
- 27.8 Employees with a full-time equivalent of thirty (30) or more hours per week will be considered full time for pension purposes.
- 27.9 Upon request, Employees who work an average of eight hundred and sixty-six (866) hours or more per year may participate in the pension plan with their pensionable service being pro-rated on the basis of the hours worked relative to one thousand and two hundred (1200) hours per year.
- 27.10 Employees who work the ten (10) month school year shall have continuous employment status and are entitled to a full year of pensionable service providing they work a minimum of thirty (30) hours per week.
- 27.11 Full-time and part-time temporary work will be considered as eligible service for pension purposes if the Employee is hired as a permanent Employee.
- 27.12 Any Employee who requests the transfer of pensionable service of any duration under a reciprocal agreement is not subject to a qualifying period and contributions must start from the day they commence employment with the Employer.
- 27.13 For each member who has completed their probationary period, the Employer will establish a Health Spending Account, and a Wellness Spending Account as offered by ASEBP, that adheres to Canada Customs and Revenue Agency requirements. The Employer will contribute fifty dollars (\$50.00) per month per eligible Employee. Employees may designate any percentage up to the total amount to a Wellness Spending Account, in compliance with the terms of the ASEBP plan. The Employer's contribution to the combined Health Spending Account and Wellness Spending Account shall be pro-rated for part-time Employees. Contributions will be suspended during unpaid leaves of absence in excess of thirty (30) days and for the non-health related portion of maternity leave. The unused balance will be carried forward for a total accumulation of two (2) years. Employees leaving the employ of the Employer will forfeit any remaining balance. These accounts will be managed according to the provisions of ASEBP.

#### **ARTICLE 28 – EMPLOYEE CELL PHONES**

28.1 Starting September 1, 2024, the Division will pay ten dollars (\$10.00) per month, for the ten (10) months of the school year (maximum \$100 per year), for each Employee (excluding casual Employees) to use their personal cell phone for communication to meet job responsibilities. Each eligible Employee must carry their cell phone and respond appropriately during working hours. Employees must provide School Administration and Employee Services with their cell phone number.

#### ARTICLE 29 – PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

- 29.1 The Employer will provide the Union with twelve thousand dollars (\$12,000.00) annually to be used by Union members for learning done on their own time. The residual of these monies will be carried forward from year to year. CUPE Local 5040 will report to the Employer annually the following information:
  - 1) Total dollars in the fund;
  - 2) the number of Employees accessing the fund; and
  - 3) summary of the focus of professional development activities.

#### ARTICLE 30 - OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

- 30.1 The Employer and the Union are committed to creating and maintaining a safe workplace environment for all Employees. Both parties agree to follow all legislation and regulations affecting safety in the workplace, including but not limited to the *Alberta Occupational Health and Safety Act*.
- 30.2 Personal protective equipment shall be provided, at the Employer's expense when approved by the Director of Inclusive Learning, Wellness and Well-Being, for all Employees who require it to perform their job safely and with minimal risk.

# SIGNED ON BEHALF OF:

# Allen Davidson (Sep 26, 2024 09:11 MDT) Allen Davidson (Sep 26, 2024 09:06 MDT) Drew Chipman (Sep 26, 2024 09:06 MDT) Drew Chipman A. Smallwood A. Smal

Sep 26, 2024

Theresa Letendre

FOOTHILLS SCHOOL DIVISION

Sep 27, 2024

Nadine Dyck

**CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC** 

DATE DATE

# APPENDIX A – SALARY APPENDIX

			GRID STEPS					
			1	2	3	4	5	6
Level I								
Learning Commons Clerk	Sep 1/20 to Aug 31/23	0%	17.72	18.25	18.71	19.21	19.73	20.45
Level II								
Learning Commons Facilitator 1 Secretary Educational Assistant Educational Assistant (PUF)	Sep 1/20 to Aug 31/23	0%	19.63	20.18	20.67	21.16	21.66	22.38
Level III								
Learning Commons Facilitator 2	Sep 1/20 to Aug 31/23	0%	21.57	22.11	22.59	23.15	23.65	24.42
Level IV						•	•	
Learning Commons Facilitator 3 CTS Instructor	Sep 1/20 to Aug 31/23	0%	23.74	24.30	24.86	25.40	25.95	26.77
Level V								
Accounting Administrator Data Facilitator Office Administrator Youth Development Coach	Sep 1/20 to Aug 31/23	0%	26.04	26.66	27.29	27.90	28.51	29.14
Level VI								
Technology Facilitator	Sep 1/20 to Aug 31/23	0%	28.51	29.14	29.76	30.39	31.01	31.63

			GRID STEPS					
			1	2	3	4	5	6
Level I								
Learning Commons Clerk	Sep 1/23	1.25%	17.94	18.48	18.94	19.45	19.98	20.71
Level II								
Learning Commons Facilitator 1 Secretary Educational Assistant Educational Assistant (PUF)	Sep 1/23	1.25%	19.88	20.43	20.93	21.42	21.93	22.66
Level III								
Learning Commons Facilitator 2	Sep 1/23	1.25%	21.84	22.39	22.87	23.44	23.95	24.73
Level IV								
Learning Commons Facilitator 3 CTS Instructor	Sep 1/23	1.25%	24.04	24.60	25.17	25.72	26.27	27.10
Level V								
Accounting Administrator Data Facilitator Office Administrator Youth Development Coach	Sep 1/23	1.25%	26.37	26.99	27.63	28.25	28.87	29.50
Level VI								
Technology Facilitator	Sep 1/23	1.25%	28.87	29.50	30.13	30.77	31.40	32.03

			GRID STEPS					
			1	2	3	4	5	6
Level I								
Learning Commons Clerk	Feb 1/24	1.5%	18.21	18.75	19.22	19.74	20.27	21.01
Level II								
Learning Commons Facilitator 1 Secretary Educational Assistant Educational Assistant (PUF)	Feb 1/24	1.5%	20.17	20.73	21.24	21.74	22.26	23.00
Level III								
Learning Commons Facilitator 2	Feb 1/24	1.5%	22.16	22.72	23.21	23.79	24.30	25.09
Level IV								
Learning Commons Facilitator 3 CTS Instructor	Feb 1/24	1.5%	24.39	24.97	25.54	26.10	26.66	27.51
Level V								
Accounting Administrator Data Facilitator Office Administrator Youth Development Coach	Feb 1/24	1.5%	26.76	27.39	28.04	28.67	29.29	29.94
Level VI								
Technology Facilitator	Feb 1/24	1.5%	29.29	29.94	30.58	31.23	31.86	32.50

		GRID STEPS						
		1	2	3	4	5		
Level I								
Learning Commons Facilitator 1 Secretary Educational Assistant	Aug 29/24	20.73	21.24	21.74	22.26	23.00		
Level II		1	•			•		
Learning Commons Facilitator 2 Educational Assistant (Certified)	Aug 29/24	22.72	23.21	23.79	24.30	25.09		
Level III								
Learning Commons Facilitator 3 CTS Instructor	Aug 29/24	24.97	25.54	26.10	26.66	27.51		
Level IV		1	•		l			
Accounting Administrator Data Facilitator Office Administrator Youth Development Coach	Aug 29/24	27.39	28.04	28.67	29.29	29.94		
Level V		•		-				
Technology Facilitator	Aug 29/24	29.94	30.58	31.23	31.86	32.50		

As of the 2024/25 school year, the following alterations are made to the grid:

- Level 1 of the 2020-2024 grid has been removed
- Step 1 of the 2020-2024 grid has been removed from all Steps

The remaining Levels and Steps have been renumbered.

# **BETWEEN**

# **CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 5040**

# **AND**

# **FOOTHILLS SCHOOL DIVISION**

# **RE: PAYMENT OF WAGES SUMMER RECESS**

The parties agree to meet and discuss an optional mechanism to pay members over ten (10) or twelve (12) months.

FOR THE UNION

esley Cole (\$40 27, 2024 09:40 MDT)

FOR THE EMPLOYER

Drew Chipman (Sep 26, 2024 09:06 MDT)

#### **BETWEEN**

# **CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 5040**

#### AND

#### **FOOTHILLS SCHOOL DIVISION**

# RE: EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANT (CERTIFIED)

Effective August 29, 2024, Education Assistant (Certified) will be added to the grid at Level II (prior Level III) and Educational Assistant (PUF) will be removed from current grid.

In recognition of on-the-job training and experience amongst existing Educational Assistants, all Educational Assistants employed by Foothills School Division will be deemed to be certified and compensated at the Level II, (prior Level III) rate (if criteria has been met) at the step corresponding to their present grid placement.

New Employees hired as Educational Assistants for the 2024-25 and ongoing school years shall be classified as Educational Assistant and placed on Level I (prior Level II) of the grid unless they meet the criteria for Educational Assistant (Certified).

The criteria for Educational Assistant (Certified) is as follows:

Educational Assistant Certificate or Diploma, a related equivalent post-secondary diploma program, or a High School Diploma and a minimum of one (1) year post-secondary course study; or

The successful completion of a minimum of three hundred (300) hours of professional development relevant to the Employee's current job description; Alternatively, five (5) years of full-time employment with the Board will be recognized as meeting this requirement; or a blend of post-secondary coursework and relevant professional development that meets or exceeds the requirements will also be considered.

FOR THE UNION

FOR THE EMPLOYER

Lesley Cole (Sep 27, 2024 09:40 MDT)

Drew Chipman (Sep 26, 2024 09:06 MDT)

# **BETWEEN**

# **CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 5040**

#### AND

# **FOOTHILLS SCHOOL DIVISION**

# **RE: LEARNING COMMONS FACILITATOR**

The parties agree to meet no later than December 31, 2024, to discuss the Learning Commons Facilitator positions and the criteria required for Employee's advancement through the grid.

FOR THE UNION

esley Cole (Sec 27, 2024 09:40 MDT)

FOR THE EMPLOYER

rew Chipman (Sep 26, 2024 09:06 MDT)

#### **BETWEEN**

# **CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 5040**

#### AND

#### **FOOTHILLS SCHOOL DIVISION**

**RE: RETROACTIVITY** 

All Employees who were employed on September 1, 2023, and have since retired or terminated employment at the end of 2023-24 school year, shall be paid retroactively on a pro-rata basis for all hours worked from September 1, 2023. All other Employees who have left the employment of the Board prior to the date of signing this Agreement shall only be eligible for their retroactive salary if they apply for same prior to sixty (60) days after the date of signing.

FOR THE UNION

esley Cole (**%**p 27, 2024 09:40 MDT)

FOR THE EMPLOYER

Drew Chipman (Sep 26, 2024 09:06 MDT)

#### **BETWEEN**

# **CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 5040**

#### AND

#### **FOOTHILLS SCHOOL DIVISION**

#### **RE: VIOLENCE IN THE WORKPLACE**

The parties agree that violence in the workplace is not acceptable.

To this end, the parties shall work together on a Letter of Understanding with the intention to address their desire to work towards the elimination of the incidence and causal factors of violence.

The parties agree to meet no later than September 30, 2024.

FOR THE UNION

esley Cole (\$**4**0 27, 2024 09:40 MDT.

FOR THE EMPLOYER

Drew Chipman (Sep 26, 2024 09:06 MDT)